
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 Blue Lake Rancheria Tribe of California 
428 Chartin Rd, Blue Lake, CA 95525 
(707) 668-5101 fax (707) 668-4272 


 


 


PROJECT STATUS REPORT 
PROJECT SUMMARY 
The Pathmakers Program serves K-12 students residing in Humboldt County to promote the integration of Native American perspectives and Traditional Ecological Knowledge 
(TEK) in the classroom utilizing culturally adapted and responsive curriculum with maker activities. 
08/31/2020 PATHMAKERS ALISON ROBBINS 


Date Project Name 


STATUS SUMMARY 


August was an extremely busy month with numerous contract negotiations and meetings for the preparation of virtual programming services for the 
Fall. 
Reporting updates to ED: Sent an update on our progress to Bianca Williams on 08/27/2020 including our current year 2 expenditures, projected 
expenditures, and our currently obligated and pre-encumbered funds. 
Mentors: We will not be bringing back all of the mentors, only two positions, which will morph into temporary part-time work of no more than 18 hours 
per week during the school year (not including school holidays). There will be one elementary school paraeducator (formerly called mentor) and one 
secondary school paraeducator. We have already contacted Wakara Scott who was one of our mentors assigned to McKinleyville MS and HS with an 
offer to rehire her as she was a successful mentor during both Fall 2019 and Spring 2020. She will be returning to the program when our new budget 
year begins on October 1. These paraeducators will also work during the summer camps. For the summer camps, three summer camp mentors will be 
hired to cover those hours in addition to our two paraeducators, for a total of five summer camp mentors. 
Mobile Makerspace Van: While we now have a completed (built out) makerspace van, due to the Volkswagon settlement we are looking to replace our 
diesel van with an electric van. David and Marlee are researching this and it appears as if we are going to purchase a vehicle and then have the inside 
built out to our specifications again, like we had done with Pacific Builders earlier this year. The $147K being provided by the settlement will cover the 
cost of the vehicle, as well as the wrap on the outside to promote the program, and the build out of the interior of the vehicle. We are hoping that we 
can have a wheelchair ramp on this vehicle. 
School Year Begins: August 24 – many programs completely virtual; some schools (Big Lagoon & Blue Lake) are partially virtual with pods of students 
coming into the school building for part of the day. On 8/18/2020 the BOE directed Alison to find a way to support Blue Lake Elementary School’s re-
opening plan. Alison has negotiated a contract to be approved by the BOE on 9/1 at a Special BOE meeting.  
Contractual: Numerous contracts were negotiated and obligated during August: 


• Blue Lake Elementary School District – BOE directed a subcommittee be created, and a program designed to assist with Blue Lake Elementary 
School’s re-opening plan. Michele Kindred and Michael Shackelford were the BOE members that volunteered for the subcommittee. Alison set 
up a Zoom meeting with DeAnn Waldvogel and the subcommittee after a few emails and phone calls for 8/26/2020. Details were worked out, 
information shared. Alison is taking a $19,000 contract to the BOE for the consent agenda which will cover 152 school days beginning 







Page 2 
 


09/08/2020 via the school district’s employee providing classroom support services at The Sapphire Palace (program called “The Palace is the 
Place”). Students were prioritized due to re-opening plan and size/space considerations: (1) Students residing within the Rancheria’s 
boundaries, (2) Native American students, (3) Children of employees of the Tribe who attend Humboldt County schools, and (4) all other children 
residing in Humboldt County. The school district employee (substitute teacher) will be on site 8:30AM to 2:30PM for classroom support activities. 
Pathmakers synchronous and a-synchronous program opportunities will be available during the 8:30AM to 2:30PM classroom support time to 
be used by teachers and students, as well as from 2:30PM to 6:30PM when after school enrichment activities will take place. Supports Goal 2: 
Student program participation. 


• C-TIE Renewal was finally received on 08/17/2020 – year three contracts are in process and will be finished by the end of September. Year 2 
carryover contract for HCOE should be the negotiated $24,715. Supports Goals 2 & 3 - Student program participation & Self-efficacy, goal setting, 
persistence, and resilience. 


• Two Feathers Native American Family Services – A contract proposal has been presented to Two Feathers organizational leadership 
(08/25/2020) in the amount of $15,000 for the prevision of mentoring services in support of the CA Parks/C-TIE joint program Kindling the 
Flame: A Youth Cultural Revitalization Program (four six-week sessions of 2.5 hours per week @ Sumeg Village) and individual mentoring, 
counseling, and tutoring of Native youth during the 2020-2021 school year. Supports Goal 2 & 3 – Student program participation & Self-efficacy, 
goal setting, persistence, and resilience. 


• Mervin Chag Lowry – Contract for The Creation of ‘Obsidian’: How to Produce a Graphic Novel curriculum and three “maker activity” videos for 
the virtual maker faire $5,000. Supports Goal 1 – Culturally Adapted Curriculum and Goal 2 – Virtual Maker Faire 


• Humboldt State University – Contract for 240 hours of student support services for Hoopa schools provided by Vanessa Cot of the TRiO Search 
Program. Supports Goal 3 – Goal setting, self-efficacy, persistence and resilience. Contract is not to exceed $9,275. 


New Program Components:  
• Pathmakers Student Internship with Facilities Department – Developed during August after detailed budget analysis showed there would be 


funds available in the salaries and fringe portion of the budget, this pilot program offers 10 hours a week @$12 per hour as a paid Internship 
for 150 hours during the Fall semester 2020. This is a demonstration project which will help the Tribal Education Agency design a new program 
for Toma called Modern Youth Apprenticeships which is being developed in conjunction with NHUHSD, Humboldt County Workforce Development 
Board and the Trades Academy with HCOE. This will provide a Native American student interested in metals and “maker” activities. Student will 
work in Facilities with Mike Smith and his staff on projects they direct, as well as creating (1) mobile smoker, and (4) mini-lending libraries. 
Student learns the design process in the enrolled classes at McKinleyville HS and receives the hands on experiences on the Rancheria. Estimated 
costs in salary and payroll taxes is rounded to $2,067. Transportation from BLR’s facilities home each day is still a challenge (listed under issues). 


• Virtual Programming – Pathmakers will have a curriculum catalog of virtual programming which is only partially developed at this time. C-TIE has 
been crafting this programming all summer with the assistance of CA State Parks (Skip Lowry, Maiya Rainer, Princess Colegrove), Margo Robbins, 
Rain Marshall, Merry Kate Lowry, Chag Lowry, Korby Skoglund, Karen Skoglund, and Keoki Burbank. Videos and curriculum will be available on 
the BLR Tribal Education Agency – Pathmakers Program webpage, and the HCOE Virtual Maker Faire. 


 


PROJECT OVERVIEW 


 







Page 3 
 


TASK % DONE DUE DATE DRIVER NOTES 


GEPRA Measures 90% 09/30/2020 
Marlee 


Mansfield-
Chavez 


During year 1, we did not focus on our GEPRA measures, and mid-way 
through year 2, it became clear we needed a concerted effort to meet 
the goals of increasing partnerships. A part of the sustainability plan 
is creating enough partnerships in support of our program, 
curriculum, and services that organizations will devote portions of 
their budgets to sustain a well-managed and efficient program that 
services their organization’s goals and Pathmakers. Marlee was 
brought onto the Rancheria staff in April and has made numerous 
connections that have directly led to the successes in increasing 
curriculum development with Cultural Advisors. Additionally, Marlee 
recruited the new Mobile Maker Technician that HCOE & Alison 
interviewed, and HCOE hired in August – Merry Kate Lowry, whose 
first day was August 21st. 


Pandemic Response 75% 08/24/2020 C-TIE 


C-TIE Steering committee is reacting to the ever changing re-opening 
plans from the 31 different school districts the program works with 
throughout Humboldt County. The majority of our response is focused 
around bringing all of our curriculum into a virtual format which is 
accessible to teachers & students in various formats: synchronous 
(live virtual programming w/weekly supply drops to schools in 
Pathmakers backpacks that go to students), a-synchronous (pre-
recorded videos w/downloadable curriculum), in-person classroom 
activities (currently at Big Lagoon & “The Palace is the Place”), in-
person mentoring/cultural revitalization w/ Two Feathers & CA State 
Parks. Some services started 8/24, some 9/8, others 9/19 – which 
is why the % done is listed as 75% since some services have yet to 
start. 


Curriculum 
Development 90% 09/30/2020 Program 


Director 


Alison took over curriculum development activities when David 
reduced his hours in April due to him taking over other 
responsibilities. Alison has since contracted with three curriculum 
cultural advisors, CA State Parks, and M. Chag Lowry to create 
culturally adapted curriculum. State Parks is developing 6 modules for 
grades 6-8, and 6 modules for grades 9-12; three cultural advisors 
are working on those 12 State Parks modules, as well as 6 Python 
Coding modules for K-8 w/HCOE & Q-Pie Education. Chag Lowry’s 
curriculum contributions cover three “how to make a graphic novel” 
videos, Solider Unknown grades 9-12; First Patriots grades 9-12; and 
My Sisters grades 5-8 – for a total of 30 modules created since Alison 
took over this focus and Marlee was brought on to strengthen and 
find new connections for program development and sustainability. 


Preparation for Year 2 
Carryover and Budget 
Adjustment Request 


90% 11/15/2020 Program 
Director 


Reports were submitted to US Dept. of ED in May 2020 which 
provided a proposed carryover. We are on track to achieve that 
carryover. It is anticipated that a CO and Budget Adjustment will be 
submitted after all of Year 2 expenditures have been processed. 







Page 4 
 


BUDGET OVERVIEW 


 


CATEGORY 


YR 2 
ESTIMATED 


EXPENDITURES 
THROUGH 


09/30/2020 


YR 2 
ESTIMATED 


OBLIGATIONS 
THROUGH 


09/30/2020 


TOTAL 
PROGRAM 


EXPENDITURES 
INCLUDING 


OBLIGATIONS 
% OF 
TOTAL ON TRACK? NOTES 


Personnel 122,345.63 31,952.31 154,297.94 83.77% YES 


The 16.23% that is unobligated is leftover mentors’ salary due to 
Covid-19 pandemic closure of schools – canceled summer camp. 
Unused salary & fringe will be carried over into year 3. We have not 
received salary or fringe detail general ledgers since moving to ADP 
thus, there is a large amount in OBLIGATIONS as July & August are 
unknown right now. 


Fringe 35,806.45 13,750.63 49,557.08 83.07% YES The 16.93% that is unobligated are the payroll taxes that support the 
mentors’ salary 


Travel 2,943.27 0.0 2,943.27 43.04% YES 


All mandatory travel was taken during Feb, and since Covid-19 Shelter 
In Place and the transition to working at home and using Zoom, the 
remaining budget that was to cover mileage is unused, and will be 
carried over into year 3. 


Equipment      No equipment budget in Year 2 


Supplies 7,729.59 5,776.25 13,505.84 51.95% YES 


The remaining unobligated 48.05% of the budget resulted because 
Covid-19 school closures and summer camp cancellation. This budget 
was for supplies supporting those activities and workshops. This 
unobligated budget will be carried forward into Year 3. 


Contractual 214,578.39 205,875.52 420,453.91 91.82% YES 


The remaining 8.18% of the unobligated budget resulted from the 
Covid-19 associated school closures and summer camp cancellation. 
Contracts associated with those activities were re-negotiated, funds 
unobligated, and new contracts issued as new services became 
available while the program pivoted to best serve students with 
various virtual and hybrid synchronous and a-synchronous activities. 


Other 79.00 0.00 79.00 2.97% YES 


The majority of this budget was earmarked to pay for the BLR Transit 
bus to take children on field trips during summer camps, but that was 
cancelled. The unobligated funds will be carried forward into Year 3’s 
budget. 


Indirect 0.00 66,313.74 66,313.74 79.20% YES 


Finance has not taken Indirect this year, and thus, the amount 
presented here is an estimation which will change if expenditures 
change. The unobligated budget will be rolled over into carry forward 
into Year 3. 


TOTAL 423,575.19 283,575.59 707,150.78 86.13% YES  


       







Page 5 
 


RISK AND ISSUE HISTORY 
  ISSUE ASSIGNED 


TO 
RESOLUTION 


DATE? NOTES 


 Insurance for students in The Sapphire Palace Jack Norton 08/31/2020 Jack is looking into this and will speak with Anita Huff to extend or 
expand insurance coverage 


 Prolonged pandemic into the NEXT school year 2021-2022 Ali Robbins Unknown It is unlikely that the level of services we will attempt to provide during 
the 2020-2021 school year will be available if the pandemic extends 
into next school year while we await a vaccine and a return to 
‘standard’ in-person classrooms. What is facilitating the expanded 
services is the availability of carryover funds from Year 2 which will 
fund $112K of Year 3. 


 Lack of Data from Year 2 to be able to complete a full 
external evaluation 


Ali Robbins 
& Karen 
Skoglund 


11/30/2020 Two of our self-efficacy surveys which were initially given our in 
September of year 2 as our base line did not receive their 
complementary bookend June self-efficacy survey for us to measure 
growth during the school year. Now students the students that were in 
General Studies 7 are now in different classes and aren’t in the same 
classroom anymore. We do have the names of the students on the 
surveys so we can attempt to contact those specific students and get 
their bookend survey, however, the survey done in the maker classes 
with Todd and Sean Curry were anonymous. We are going to do our 
best to attempt to collect the end of Year 2 surveys, which may turn 
out to be the beginning of Year 3 surveys. 


 Transportation for program participants Ali Robbins 09/08/2020 We are currently unsure how students are going to get to and from the 
services provided at “The Palace is the Place”. We are suggesting the 
purchase of student bus passes, and the use of our BLR Transit 
system, allowing the school to hand out passes with the supply drop 
off for the students attending the BLR program. We are also still 
looking for transportation for our new student internship program with 
Facilities. The student needs a ride home at 5pm on Tuesday and 
Thursday nights. We are considering a dial-a-ride appointment if that 
is available with BLT Transit, otherwise, we might have to set up an 
Uber account for this. We are uncertain of the insurance or liability 
issues because the students are minors. NHUHSD has provided field 
trip permission slips and car inspection forms as examples should we 
decide to allow private vehicles. We’d have to arrange for the BLR 
Police Department to inspect the vehicles before they are approved. 


 





		PROJECT SUMMARY

		08/31/2020

		PATHMAKERS

		ALISON ROBBINS



		STATUS SUMMARY

		PROJECT OVERVIEW

		TASK

		% DONE

		DUE DATE

		DRIVER

		NOTES



		BUDGET OVERVIEW

		CATEGORY

		YR 2 ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES THROUGH 09/30/2020

		YR 2 ESTIMATED

		OBLIGATIONS THROUGH 09/30/2020

		TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENDITURES INCLUDING OBLIGATIONS

		% OF TOTAL

		ON TRACK?

		NOTES



		RISK AND ISSUE HISTORY

		ISSUE

		ASSIGNED TO

		RESOLUTION DATE?

		NOTES








 Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency 
428 Chartin Rd, Blue Lake, CA 95525 
(707) 668-5101 fax (707) 668-4272 


  


PROJECT STATUS REPORT 
PROJECT SUMMARY 
The STEP Development project is for the establishment of a Tribal Education Agency, creation of an Education Code, establishment of a Board of Education, and the formation of 
a Joint Powers Authority for the accreditation of a Regional Occupational Center & Program (ROC/P) which will facilitate effective utilization of the new Toma Resilience Campus. 
08/31/2020 STEP DEVELOPMENT ALISON ROBBINS 


Date Project Name 


STATUS SUMMARY 


August was an extremely busy month with creation of meetings, agendas and calendars for the BOE, analyzation of budget for a one year no cost 
extension application, and the finalization of the MOA expanding C-TIE which outlines a timeline for project progress. 
Reporting updates to ED: The request for a budget adjustment and carryover was sent back in late May, but a request came from US Dept. of ED 
program officer Shahla Ortega for a formal carryover request on letterhead. This was done by 08/14/2020, and the program no cost extension was 
approved on 08/17/2020. Alison has been attending weekly meetings on Thursdays w/ US Dept. of ED since the beginning of the pandemic. 
Personnel issues: Bonnie Mobbs has left the employ of the Rancheria and her position as Executive Director of the Tribal Education Agency and the 
Director of the STEP Development grant needs to be filled. Arla and Jason have approached me (Alison Robbins) to take the position in addition to the 
Pathmakers Program responsibilities. Alison has provided several scenarios with a breakdown of how many hours of her time could be allocated to all 
the various Education Programs now being undertaken by the Tribe. These scenarios are for Alison’s time with a part-time assistant who would work 
23-29 hours per week solely on this program. Alison is open to discussing the redistributing her hours and pay without a part-time assistant as well, 
should that be the preference of Jason and Arla. 
Contractual: Numerous contracts are currently being negotiated and should be obligated in September: 


• C-TIE Expansion – An MOA was created that expands C-TIE to include College of the Redwoods as a partner. This helps BOTH the STEP Grant and 
the Pathmakers program’s GEPRA measurements task. 


o HCOE - $20,000 for BOE training, form template, policy examples, and staff training. Assistance with the Joint Powers Authority agreement 
and the ROC/P accreditation process. 


o College of the Redwoods - $10,000 for the creation of the Education Code that facilitates a Designated Single Credential for Career 
Technical Education to be offered through CR, and assistance with the Joint Powers Authority agreement and the ROC/P accreditation 
process. 


o NHUHSD - $5,000 for assistance with the development of Education Code policy and program procedures including the sharing of forms, 
templates, policy examples. Assistance with the Joint Powers Authority agreement and the ROC/P accreditation process. 


o David Rapport - $15,000 for legal costs associated with the creation of the Education Code, Joint Powers Authority agreement, and TEA 
forms, and SOPs. 







Page 2 
 


PROJECT OVERVIEW 


 
TASK % DONE DUE DATE DRIVER NOTES 


BOE 75% 09/30/2020 BOE Need to schedule BOE training dates 


Education Code 60% 12/31/2020 Ali 
Robbins 


Still identifying pieces that need to be covered due to pandemic and issues 
that it brought up about emergency responses and virtual programming, 
student transportation, and liability 


MOA 99% 09/15/2020 Ali 
Robbins 


Contracts derived from the MOA need signatures and approval on the next 
BOE meeting 


JPA 0% 01/29/2021 Ali 
Robbins 


 


ROC/P 
Accreditation 0% 09/30/2021 Ali 


Robbins 
 


BUDGET OVERVIEW 


 


CATEGORY 


YR 1 
ESTIMATED 


EXPENDITURES 
THROUGH 


09/30/2020 


YR1 
ESTIMATED 


OBLIGATIONS 
THROUGH 


09/30/2020 


CARRYOVER 
NO COST 


EXTENTION 
ON 


TRACK? NOTES 


Personnel 19,781.85 2,000.00 32,718.15 No Bonnie Mobbs & David Narum are no longer on the Payroll. Alison’s pay is now coming from here 
and it is to be determined how much, and if there will be another part-time person hired. 


Fringe 7,286.68 800.00 13,713.32 No The remaining budget was for Bonnie & David’s fringe, this will support Alison or another staff 
member if they are hired. 


Travel 2,145.26  584.00 Yes 


Costs are from the mandatory director’s meeting. It is likely that the mandatory meeting will be 
cancelled for 2020-2021 – this funding is being kept here should there be an actual meeting 
which will most likely be split with Pathmakers and thus, with Alison as Director, will cost less as 
the cost will be split. 


Supplies 46.03   No 
Supplies were not in the initial budget, however Bonnie wanted hard copy folders for herself and 
all the BOE members which were not available in the Tribal supplies, and thus, needed to be 
purchased. 


Contractual  50,000.00 0.00 No Contracts and legal fees should be obligated by signed contracts before the end of September 
2020. 


Other   3,983.71 Yes These funds were originally earmarked to join organizations and pay for fees associated with the 
program goals. 


Indirect 6,276.54  16,780.46 Yes Indirect cost rate has gone down to 20% for costs in 2021 – it is anticipated that the full amount 
of this budget may not be utilized depending on when charges post 2020 vs. 2021. 


TOTAL $35,536.36 $52,800.00 $67,779.64   







Page 3 
 


       


RISK AND ISSUE HISTORY 
  ISSUE ASSIGNED TO RESOLUTION 


DATE? NOTES 


 Designating a new project director for US Dept. of ED Jason & Arla ASAP With Bonnie gone, we need another Project Director so they can 
access G5.gov and handle the reporting 


     


     


     


 





		PROJECT SUMMARY

		08/31/2020

		STEP DEVELOPMENT

		ALISON ROBBINS



		STATUS SUMMARY

		PROJECT OVERVIEW

		TASK

		% DONE

		DUE DATE

		DRIVER

		NOTES



		BUDGET OVERVIEW

		CATEGORY

		YR 1 ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES THROUGH 09/30/2020

		YR1 ESTIMATED

		OBLIGATIONS THROUGH 09/30/2020

		CARRYOVER NO COST EXTENTION

		ON TRACK?

		NOTES



		RISK AND ISSUE HISTORY

		ISSUE

		ASSIGNED TO

		RESOLUTION DATE?

		NOTES








Board of Education Minutes 
Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency 


 Tuesday, August 18, 2020 – 7PM   
Zoom Online Meeting 


Blue Lake, CA 


8/20/2020 10:36 PM 1 Prepared by: Alison Robbins 


I. OPENING MEETING   


Meeting was called to order at 7:06PM by Jason Ramos, President 


a. Roll Call -  
i. BOE in attendance: Jason Ramos, Jace Baldosser, Michael Shackelford; Kelsay 


Shackelford; Michele Kindred (Quorum confirmed) 
ii. TEA staff in attendance: Alison Robbins 


b. Moment of Silence – Jason asked for a moment of reflection rather than silence on all 
that is facing the community and world at the present time, and provided reassurance for 
the Tribes continued support of the community. 


 
II. REPORTS 


a. The Executive Director’s Report was provided by Alison Robbins. 
i. Update on STEP Grant – received approval for a no cost extension on 8/17; MOA 


was negotiated 7/22, and all partners have signed as of 8/17; Reports were 
submitted to US Dept. of ED in May 2020. 


ii. Update on Pathmakers Grant – coming to the end of Yr. 2 and program is moving 
to a primarily virtual format with the exception of CA State Parks program on 
Saturday mornings. Major reports (52 pages) were submitted in May 2020. New 
connections made with HSU, Two Feathers, CA State Parks, and author Chag 
Lowry. Year 3 begins 10/1. 


iii. Update on Air Quality Curriculum Grant – has begun with finding teachers to 
implement in the Spring 2021. Will be paired with Pathmakers to be implemented 
at Hoopa HS/ELEM, Blue Lake Elem, Arcata HS, McKinleyville HS/MS. 


Alison also updated the BOE on the submission of a 3-year STEP grant which was submitted on 
07/31/2020; 50-page application narrative, 5-page budget narrative, and upwards 17 different items for 
the appendix. Information is so large it cannot be emailed in a single email. Alison pulled out different 
pieces of the application to show the BOE (5-year plan chart, goals/task chart, TRC diagram, and budget) 
included in the agenda packet. Alison will send out more information in separate emails to accommodate 
the size. The Notice of Award should BLR be funded will arrive in late September. 


b. Financial Reports  
i. STEP Financial Reports – Alison noted that now the MOA has been signed the 


$50,000 in contractual services can be issued in contract and work for HCOE, CR, 
NHUHSD, and David Rapport. Funding through 9/30/2021. 


ii. Pathmakers Financial Reports – Alison went over the four budget periods of the 
Pathmakers grant (see agenda packet), and explained that the budget periods 
overlap years, pointed out the two budget periods expenditures (see blue & tan 
budget expenditures in agenda packet), and explained the carryover of funds 







Board of Education Minutes 
Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency 


 Tuesday, August 18, 2020 – 7PM   
Zoom Online Meeting 


Blue Lake, CA 


8/20/2020 10:36 PM 2 Prepared by: Alison Robbins 


from one year to the next supplying an estimation of what year 2 into year 3 
budgeted carryover looked like (see US Dept of ED carryover form in agenda 
packet). 


c. Marketing & Communications Report – Alison updated the BOE regarding press releases 
that have been given to Jason for approval by Andrea. Toni and Andrea have completed 
their Native Maker poster series 1 which will be going out to schools. New pages for the 
TEA website have been created to support the virtual programming to be posted. 


 
III. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS 


Two members of the public in attendance: Brooke Howes, and Rachel Fusi 


Rachel Fusi stated she is the ACES Coordinator at Blue Lake School. Rachel expressed concerns regarding 
a lack of a place/space for children to do their homework which has internet and computer access. She 
also mentioned that students need homework help.  


IV. CONSENT AGENDA  


No items were presented on the Consent Agenda. 


V. ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION OR DISCUSSION 
 


a. Blue Lake Elementary School Covid-19 closure – BLR Response 
i. Contacts(s): Jace Baldosser, Jason Ramos 


ii. Purpose: To review the potential support BLR can provide to Blue Lake School 
District during the 2020-2021 school year. 


iii. DISCUSSION: Jace Baldosser began discussion with an update on what the BOE of 
Blue Lake School District had decided upon as a course of action for the Fall 
semester with regards to school during the pandemic as Jace is on that BOE as 
well and helped devise the plan. Discussion ensured between the BOE members 
on what could be done on the Rancheria to support families and students. 
Discussion on who to prioritize, and what grade levels to support. Jason wanted 
to make sure that efforts undertaken by the TEA targeted those children living on 
the Rancheria first. Alison requested a list of students living on the Rancheria be 
provided. Board discussion turned to the need to create a subcommittee which 
will work with Blue Lake School to coordinate efforts to meet their needs. Jace 
stated he should recuse himself from the subcommittee due to his position on 
both BOEs. Michele and Michael both volunteered to work on the subcommittee. 
Jace made a suggestion that more meetings might assist Alison with completing 
her work within the timeline. Dates were discussed. Suggestions and discussion 
on using The Sapphire Palace, which already has a reopening plan in place and 
has tables and chairs in a meeting/classroom set up, including a large 







Board of Education Minutes 
Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency 


 Tuesday, August 18, 2020 – 7PM   
Zoom Online Meeting 


Blue Lake, CA 


8/20/2020 10:36 PM 3 Prepared by: Alison Robbins 


presentation screen. Board discussion turned to a possible pilot study of 15 
students max to be initiated to assist families. Jason made a point to clarify that 
this pilot program not turn into child care. Alison stated that she had set funding 
aside to provide tutoring. Michele made a suggestion to work with Blue Lake 
school and their list of substitute teachers that have already worked with these 
students in school. 


iv. NOMINATIONS: 
1. Jace Baldosser makes the motion to create a BOE Subcommittee to 


investigate educational challenges Blue Lake School District is facing due 
to the pandemic, directing the committee to meet with the 
Superintendent/Principal DeAnn Waldvogel to learn in what fashion BLR 
can help; Kelsay Shackelford 2nd. 


a. DECISION: 5-0-0, motion carried 
b. ACTION: Staff is directed to contact DeAnn Waldvogel, set up a 


meeting (on Zoom), and begin budget analysis to determine what 
Pathmakers can support. 


2. Jace Baldosser makes the motion to create Special Board meetings to 
improve the speed of business for TEA actions, assisting Alison to 
complete her work with the prescribed grant timeline; Kelsay Shackelford 
2nd. 


a. DECISION: 5-0-0, motion carried 
b. ACTION: Staff is directed to create a revised BOE calendar to 


include three special meetings (9/1, 9/29, and 10/27) and 
provide this update to Toni Ramos for the website. 


 
VI. MISCELLANEOUS  


a. Approval of DRAFT BOE Meeting Minutes of 02/11/2020 


i. DISCUSSION: Jason called for a review of the minutes. There were no questions 
or corrections. 


ii. NOMINATIONS: Michael Shackelford motions to approve the minutes as 
presented; Jace Baldosser 2nd 
DECISION: 5-0-0, motion carries 


iii. ACTION: Staff will provide APPROVED minutes to Toni Ramos for uploading on 
the BOE website. Staff will place a hardcopy of APPROVED minutes in the Clerk 
of the Board’s official binder, and give the binder to the Tribal Office Secretary 
so that if a member of the public desires to see the minutes, they can have 
immediate and free access to the public record.  
 


b. Approval of DRAFT BOE Professional Development Training Meeting Minutes of 3/7/2020  







Board of Education Minutes 
Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency 


 Tuesday, August 18, 2020 – 7PM   
Zoom Online Meeting 


Blue Lake, CA 


8/20/2020 10:36 PM 4 Prepared by: Alison Robbins 


i. DISCUSSION: Jason called for a review of the minutes. There were no questions 
or corrections. 


ii. NOMINATIONS: Kelsay Shackelford motions to approve the minutes as 
presented; Michael Shackelford 2nd 
DECISION: 5-0-0, motion carries 


iii. ACTION: Staff will provide APPROVED minutes to Toni Ramos for uploading on 
the BOE website. Staff will place a hardcopy of APPROVED minutes in the Clerk 
of the Board’s official binder, and give the binder to the Tribal Office Secretary 
so that if a member of the public desires to see the minutes, they can have 
immediate and free access to the public record.  


 
VII. NEW BUSINESS  


a. No new business was presented to the BOE at this meeting. 
 


VIII. AJOURNMENT  
a. Michele Kindred made the motion to adjourn the meeting; Michael Shackelford 2nd. 


Jason Ramos adjourned the meeting at 8:07 PM 








Board of Education Sub-Committee Agenda 
Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency 


 Wednesday, August 26, 2020 – 6:30PM   
Zoom Online Meeting Platform 


Blue Lake, CA 


3/10/2020 6:36 PM 1 Prepared by: Alison Robbins 


TYPE OF MEETING: Special Sub-committee 


MEETING FACILITATOR: Alison Robbins 


INVITES: DeAnn Waldvogel, Superintendent BLESD; Michele Kindred, BOE Member; Michael Shakelford, 
BOE Member; Marlee Mansfield-Chavez, Pathmakers Service Coordinator. 


I. Meeting Goals & Topics 
a. Challenges faced by Blue Lake Elementary School District (DeAnn) 


i. Families want on campus learning – limited by huge liability unknowns 
ii. Employees taking leaves of absences – not enough staff to do even limited on 


campus  
iii. Childcare vs. Academic Enrichment limits funding 
iv. Highly impacted families – 40+ 
v. Have to keep families together – in pods – thus, multi-grade levels in pods 


vi. We don’t have enough space to serve everybody 
vii. 70 Chromebooks have gone out – needs connectivity for on-line learning, needs 


space 
b. School day logistics – what does it look like now (DeAnn) 


i. 8:30AM is first class – live (synchronous) or recorded (A-synchronous) 
ii. On-Campus teacher in empty classroom (Zoom meeting – pre-recorded 


instructional piece with teachers watching students live) 
iii. Independent practice work (different platforms for on-line self-paced programs) 
iv. Different instructional minute requirements per grade level – time value 


assignments (Each teacher has their own individual schedule) 
v. ASES grant provided extended dates 8AM – 2:30PM – 12 per pod, 4 maximum 


pods, 2 at the school, 2 at the Prasch Hall 
vi. Enrollment day – October 2? Teachers taking attendance – had predicted 97 


students for lunch, and got 15 students 
vii. 9AM Check in for the day’s average daily attendance count and 


lunches/snack/super 
viii. Mondays and Thursdays 1 – 3PM – ASES music classes – percussion only 


ix. 4th grade goes back online at 1PM 
c. Tribal Education Agency (TEA) & BLESD partnership 


i. Assistance to students 
1. Desks, connectivity, place to be, headsets with mouthpiece microphone 
2. General classroom assistance – 8:30AM - Noon 


a. K – 3 will need assistance 
b. 8:30AM – half day bulk of academics 
c.  


ii. Curriculum Catalog 







Board of Education Sub-Committee Agenda 
Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency 


 Wednesday, August 26, 2020 – 6:30PM   
Zoom Online Meeting Platform 


Blue Lake, CA 


3/10/2020 6:36 PM 2 Prepared by: Alison Robbins 


1. Friday supply pick-up – there times for parents. 
2. Set of KT Land Tenure Curriculum K - 8  
3. STEM & Tech Rich Classrooms 


a. Live Stream or Pre-recorded Merry Kate; or 
b. Curriculum Catalog w/ supply drop off 


iii. Enrichment books – classroom sets 
1. 8th Grade WWI Supplemental Curriculum Soldiers Unknown 
2. 5th – 8th Grade Language Arts Supplemental Curriculum My Sisters 


II. Action Items 
a. DeAnn contacting parents that live on the Rancheria and near the Rancheria to a total of 


15 students – offering the “Palace is the Place to Be” 
i. Need of list of how many and who to expect 


ii. Permission slip? Ali ask David Rapport to create a liability waiver for Covid-19 
iii. Ali – ask Jason about the Transit system helping students get to the Rancheria 


b. DeAnn to send Alison the ROI – to go to Legal and then the BOE on Tuesday for their 
approval 


c. Substitute teacher chosen by DeAnn, pre-screened school employee – Ali needs to get a 
contract to DeAnn for dollar figure covering September try to cover all day – half day at 
minimum to cover the academics – SQUEEZZE THE BUDGET 


d. Ali & Marlee – connect with IT at Rancheria to make sure everything is set up to go at the 
Palace once we have the official go ahead 


i. Connect Merry Kate with DeAnn for the arrangement of curriculum times 
ii. Add items to the BOE Agenda 


iii. Follow up with DeAnn by Wednesday 9/2 - 4-6:30PM – Michele & Michael on this 
too 


iv. Contract – Aim for start of services by 9/8 








Board of Education Agenda 
Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency 


 Tuesday, September 1, 2020 – 7PM   
Zoom Meeting On-line Platform 


Blue Lake, CA 


8/27/2020 6:47 PM 1 Prepared by: Alison Robbins 


I. OPENING MEETING   
a. Roll Call 
b. Moment of Silence 
c. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
II. REPORTS 


a. The Executive Director’s Report  
i. Update on the NYCP grant 


ii. Update on the STEP grant 
b. Marketing & Communications Report  


i. Covers update on TEA webpage; press releases;  
c. Sub-Committee Reports  


i. Blue Lake Elementary School District Student Assistance Sub-Committee 
 


III. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS  


A member of the public (speaker) may address the Board during the Public Communications section of 
the BOE Agenda. Comments by public speakers made during the Public Communications will be limited to 
items on the BOE Agenda or items within the jurisdiction of the Board. The number of speakers who speak 
during Public Communications will not exceed ten. A speaker, in lieu of speaking during Public 
Communications, may speak during an agenda item. Comments during an agenda item will be limited to 
the topic of the agenda item. Speakers may register to speak by calling the Acting Clerk of the Board at 
668-5101 x1057 by noon on the day of the BOE meeting, or they may register at the location of the BOE 
meeting until 10 minutes before the meeting begins. When registering to speak, a speaker will identify 
the topic the speaker wishes to address. A speaker’s comments at a meeting will not exceed 3 minutes, 
will be limited to the registered topic, and will not include personnel matters concerning TEA or Tribal 
employees and/or matters that would violate the privacy of students. Speakers will provide (7) copies of 
any handouts to the Acting Clerk of the Board for distribution at the Board table. For more information 
and restrictions, please see BOE policy Section 1402.6 Board of Education Agendas, Calendars, & 
Meetings. 


IV. CONSENT AGENDA  
a. Blue Lake Elementary School District 2020-2021 School Year – Pandemic Support 


i. Contact(s): Michele Kindred, Michael Shackelford, DeAnn Woldvogel (invited 
guest), Alison Robbins 


ii. Purpose: Partnership with BLESD to provide support for expanding the pandemic 
in-person student pods implementation. TEA provides the space and funding for 
staff; the school district provides the student support staff via a licensed district 
employee run through their payroll system. Employee has been finger printed, 
received mandated reporter training, and has past experience with students as 







Board of Education Agenda 
Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency 


 Tuesday, September 1, 2020 – 7PM   
Zoom Meeting On-line Platform 


Blue Lake, CA 


8/27/2020 6:47 PM 2 Prepared by: Alison Robbins 


well as technological skills. Cost is $125 per day, 152 days fit within current 
budget. 


iii. Recommendation: It is the recommendation of staff, that the BOE consent to the 
contract for the 2020-2021 school year providing funding for a licensed district 
employee, and authorization for the Sapphire Palace as the site for 15 students 
to use internet connectivity and the space for learning support not to exceed 
$19,000. Charges approved to: 03/280/5300 


1. DISCUSSION:  
2. NOMINATIONS: 
3. DECISION:  
4. ACTION:  


b. Blue Lake Rancheria Transit System – Student Bus Passes for “Palace is the Place” & Dial-
A-Ride Services for Pathmakers Student Interns 


i. Contact(s): Alison Robbins, Kyle Mayr (invited guest) 
ii. Purpose:  


1. To provide bus passes through the Pathmakers program so that students 
assigned to the learning pods in the “Palace is the Place” classroom have 
transportation to and from home & the Rancheria should they live off 
Rancheria lands. Student passes (20 rides) are $22.50. The suggested not 
to exceed amount of $1,700 provides for 9 student passes a month 
September through May, for a total of 75 passes costing $1,688. Passes 
will be purchased and provided to Blue Lake Elementary school to be 
handed out to “Palace is the Place” students in their Friday supply bags 
on a monthly basis. 


2. To provide deviated fixed route or dial-a-ride services in support of the 
new Pathmakers Student Internship program with Facilities Department 
and NHUHSD. 


iii. Recommendation: It is the recommendation of staff, that the BOE consent to the 
contract for the 2020-2021 school year providing funding for student bus passes 
for “The Palace is the Place” program, not to exceed $1,700, and student 
internship program support not to exceed $700. Total student transportation 
authorized not to exceed $2,400. Charges approved to: 03/280/5300 


1. DISCUSSION:  
2. NOMINATIONS:  
3. DECISION:  
4. ACTION:  


c. Humboldt State University – TRiO Talent Search & Pathmakers partnership 
i. Contact(s): Alison Robbins 







Board of Education Agenda 
Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency 


 Tuesday, September 1, 2020 – 7PM   
Zoom Meeting On-line Platform 


Blue Lake, CA 


8/27/2020 6:47 PM 3 Prepared by: Alison Robbins 


ii. Purpose: Partnership expansion with HSU to provide self-efficacy, goal setting, 
persistence, and resilience student support services at schools in Hoopa using 
STEM activities as part of the Pathmakers program. 


iii. Recommendation: It is the recommendation of staff, that the BOE consent to the 
contract for the 2020-2021 school year providing for up to 240 hours of service 
for Hoopa schools, not to exceed $9,275. Charges approved to: 03/280/5300 


1. DISCUSSION:  
2. NOMINATIONS:  
3. DECISION:  
4. ACTION:  


d. Melvin Chag Lowry – Author 
i. Contact(s): Alison Robbins, M. Chag Lowry (invited guest) 


ii. Purpose: Expand partnership with Author M. Chag Lowry for the development of 
two curriculums (1) for grades 5 – 8, (2) for grades 9 – 12 based upon the author’s 
two novels which are on Consent Item f(ii)3. 


iii. Recommendation: It is the recommendation of staff, that the BOE consent to the 
contract for the development of culturally adaptive curriculum for two of the 
authors novels for use by the TEA and its consortium partners, not to exceed 
$5,000. Charges approved to: 03/280/5300 


1. DISCUSSION:  
2. NOMINATIONS:  
3. DECISION:  
4. ACTION:  


e. Two Feathers Native American Family Services, Inc. 
i. Contact(s): Alison Robbins 


ii. Purpose: Providing mentoring, tutoring, counseling services in coordination with 
the CA State Parks Kindling the Flame: A Youth Cultural Revitalization Program. 


iii. Recommendation: It is the recommendation of staff, that the BOE consent to the 
contract for the provision of mentoring, tutoring, and counseling services, not to 
exceed $15,000. Charges approved to: 03/280/5300 


1. DISCUSSION:  
2. NOMINATIONS:  
3. DECISION:  
4. ACTION:  


f. Curriculum Purchases - multiple vendors 
i. Contact(s): Alison Robbins 


ii. Purpose: The purchase of the following curriculum which are supported by 
Pathmakers culturally adapted maker activities, synchronous and A-synchronous 
virtual presentations: 







Board of Education Agenda 
Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency 


 Tuesday, September 1, 2020 – 7PM   
Zoom Meeting On-line Platform 


Blue Lake, CA 


8/27/2020 6:47 PM 4 Prepared by: Alison Robbins 


1. Klamath-Trinity Land Tenure Curriculum sets for Blue Lake Elementary & 
CA State Parks as well as books for the mini-lending libraries $1,677.25 


2. ITEP – Gold Rush Native Perspectives Curriculum $225 – grades 9-12 
3. Melvin Chag Lowry, Author – Novels 


a. First Patriots – up to 145 copies @ $12.50, not to exceed $1,750 
– curriculum level grades 9-12 


b.  My Sisters – up to 145 copies @ $12.50, not to exceed $1,750 – 
curriculum level grades 5-8 


iii. Recommendation: It is the recommendation of staff, that the BOE consent to the 
purchase of additional pieces of curriculum that go along with the culturally 
adapted maker activities, furthering the curriculum use and allowing for non-
infringement of copyrights, not to exceed $5,500. Charges approved to: 
03/280/5211 


1. DISCUSSION:  
2. NOMINATIONS:  
3. DECISION:  
4. ACTION:  


g. Pathmakers Internship Program - pilot 
i. Contact(s): Alison Robbins, Mike Smith, Karen Skoglund (invited guest) 


ii. Purpose: Authorization to hire a student intern under the Pathmakers Program. 
Student will work with Mike Smith and his staff in Facilities up to 10 hours per 
week for 15 weeks (total of 150 hrs.). Student will work on projects assigned by 
Mike Smith and on two Pathmakers projects (1) mobile smoker, and (2) four mini-
lending libraries. 


iii. Recommendations: It is the recommendation of staff, that the BOE consent to the 
creation of a pilot Internship project under the Pathmakers program, hiring a 
student intern and purchasing the associated supplies for projects, total pilot 
project costs not to exceed $4,200. Charges approved to 03/280/5001 


iv. DISCUSSION:  
v. NOMINATIONS:  


vi. DECISION:  
ACTION:  


 
V. ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION OR DISCUSSION 


a. Changing the Board Meeting Calendar 
i. Contact(s): Jace Baldosser  


ii. Purpose: BOE Vice-President, Jace Baldosser is requesting a rescheduling of 
planned BOE meetings due to a new and significant conflict on the established 
meetings & times. Per adopted Education Code Section 1402 Board of Education: 







Board of Education Agenda 
Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency 


 Tuesday, September 1, 2020 – 7PM   
Zoom Meeting On-line Platform 


Blue Lake, CA 


8/27/2020 6:47 PM 5 Prepared by: Alison Robbins 


6. Board of Education Agendas, Calendars, & Meetings 
The Board shall meet in regular session at least once each month and shall 
schedule other official meetings and committee meetings as are 
necessary. The procedures for BOE Agendas and general information 
about Board meetings are set for in this Education Code. The Executive 
Director of the Tribal Education Agency or their designee, shall establish 
a 12-month calendar of Board of Education meetings each January. Once 
adopted, this calendar will be changed only by a majority vote of the 
Board, except in the case of emergency when the Board President shall be 
permitted to make a change, or special meetings as noted in this 
Education Code.  


iii. Recommendations: It is the recommendation of staff that meetings either: (1) be 
moved to Monday at 7PM or (2) remain on Tuesday but have the start time 
pushed back to 8PM. 


iv. DISCUSSION:  
v. NOMINATIONS:  


vi. DECISION:  
ACTION:  
 


b. TEA Vision and Mission Statement Development Committee 
i. Contact(s): Michele Johnson, Kelsay Shakelford, Alison Robbins 


ii. Purpose: To receive direction on the appointment of members to the committee, 
and to receive priorities list from the BOE. 


iii. Recommendations: Staff recommends the appointment of Angela “Angie” 
McCabe to the committee based upon her direct work with children at local 
schools, her education, and past experience in tribal education. 


iv. DISCUSSION:  
v. NOMINATIONS:  


vi. DECISION:  
ACTION:  


 
c. Executive Director position – This item can be in closed session – Personnel Related 


i. Contact(s): Jason Ramos  
ii. Purpose: To officially designate Alison Robbins as the Executive Director of the 


Tribal Education Agency, and authorize the change to the STEP Grant Project 
Director with US Department of Education so that she may have access to 
reporting and communication responsibilities. 


iii. Recommendations:  
iv. DISCUSSION:  







Board of Education Agenda 
Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency 


 Tuesday, September 1, 2020 – 7PM   
Zoom Meeting On-line Platform 


Blue Lake, CA 


8/27/2020 6:47 PM 6 Prepared by: Alison Robbins 


v. NOMINATIONS:  
vi. DECISION:  


ACTION:  
 
 


VI. MISCELLANEOUS  
a. Approval of DRAFT BOE Meeting Minutes of 08/18/2020 


 
VII. NEW BUSINESS  


 
VIII. AJOURNMENT  








  


Humboldt State University Sponsored Programs Foundation 


Non-Federal Contract Agreement | v2016-A   Page 1  


CONTRACT AGREEMENT 


Institution/Organization   


Blue Lake Rancheria 


(“BLR”) 


PO Box 428 


Blue Lake, CA 95525 


Institution/Organization  


Humboldt State University Sponsored Programs 


Foundation 


(“HSUSPF”) 


1 Harpst Street 


Arcata, CA 95521-8299 


Budget Total: $9,275 


Performance Period: 08/24/2020 – 05/27/2021 


PROJECT TITLE: PATHMAKERS @ HOOPA 


TERMS AND CONDITIONS 


1) BLR hereby awards a cost reimbursable Agreement, as described above, to HSUSPF. The statement of work and 


budget for this agreement are as shown in Attachments 2 & 3. In its performance of agreement work, HSUSPF shall 


be an independent entity and not an employee or agent of BLR.  


2) BLR shall reimburse HSUSPF not more often than monthly for allowable costs. All invoices shall be submitted using 


HSUSPF’s standard invoice, but at a minimum shall include current and cumulative costs and certification of truth as to 


accuracy of invoice. It is understood that no substantial variations will be made in the budget without prior written 


approval by BLR. Invoices and questions concerning invoice receipt or payments shall be directed to the appropriate 


party’s Financial Contact as shown in Attachment 1. 


3) A final invoice, marked ‘FINAL’ must be submitted to BLR’s Financial Contact, as shown in Attachment 1A, not 


later than sixty (60) days after the Performance Period end date.  


4) Matters concerning the technical performance of this subaward should be directed to the appropriate party’s Principal 


Investigator, as shown in Attachment 1.  


5) Matters concerning the request or negotiation of any changes in the terms, conditions, or amounts cited in this 


subaward agreement, and any changes requiring prior approval, should be directed to the appropriate party's 


Administrative Contact, as shown in Attachment 1. Any such changes made to this subaward require the written 


approval of each party's Authorized Official, as shown in Attachment 1. 


6) Each party shall be responsible for its negligent acts or omissions and the negligent acts or omissions of its employees, 


officers, or directors, to the extent allowed by law.  


7) Either party may terminate this agreement with thirty (30) days written notice to the appropriate party’s 


Administrative Contact, as shown in Attachment 1. BLR shall pay HSUSPF for termination costs as allowable under 


2CFR Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.  


8) No-cost time extensions require the written approval of the BLR. Any requests for a no-cost time extension should be 


addressed to and received by the BLR’s Administrative Contact, as shown in Attachment 1, not less than thirty (30) 


days prior to the desired effective date of the requested change.  


9) This Agreement, including any referenced attachments, appendices and references, constitutes the entire Agreement 


and supersedes any other written or oral representations, statements negotiations, or agreements. 


10) BLR and HSUSPF both shall have a royalty-free, exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, use, and to 


authorize others to do so, all original writings, sound recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, computer programs, 


and other works of similar nature produced in the course of or under this Agreement.  HSUSPF agrees to deliver a 


reproducible copy of such documents and materials to the BLR on completion of the services required in this 


Agreement. 


 


By an Authorized Official of BLR: 


 


 


 
___________________________________                                      _______________ 


 


By an Authorized Official of HSUSPF: 


 


 


 
______________________________________                               _______________ 


Name: Jace Baldosser 


Title: Vice-President, Board of Education 


Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education 


Agency      


    Date Name: Kacie Flynn 


Title:  Executive Director 


      Date                                 


DocuSign Envelope ID: DD84A451-AB4D-434A-8A80-4EB6846CFDCB


August 27, 2020 August 25, 2020







  


Humboldt State University Sponsored Programs Foundation 


Non-Federal Contract Agreement | v2016-A   Page 2  


 


ATTACHMENT 1 
 


Contacts  
 


 


HSUSPF Contacts 


 


BLR Contacts 
 


Administrative Contact  


 


Name:         Sam Caudill, Grant Analyst 


                    HSU-Sponsored Programs Foundation 


Address:     1 Harpst Street, SBS 427 


                    Arcata, CA  95521 


 


Telephone:  707-826-5167 


Fax:             707-826-4783 


Email:          srb76@humboldt.edu. 


      


 


Administrative Contact 


 


Name: Alison Robbins, Clerk of the Board 


     Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency 


       


Address: PO Box 428, Blue Lake, CA 95525       


       


       


Telephone: (620) 705-1715 (cellphone)       


Fax:  (707) 668-4272       


Email: arobbins@bluelakerancheria-nsn.gov       


 


 


Principal Investigator 


 


Name:      Rose Francia 


                Humboldt State University TRIO      


Address:  1 Harpst Street, SBS 163B       


                Arcata, CA 95521-8299  


           


Telephone: 707-826-5216       


Fax:       


Email:   rsf9@humboldt.edu       


 


 


Project Director 


 


Name: Alison Robbins, Program Director       


Address:  PO Box 428, Blue Lake, CA 95525       


       


       


Telephone: (620) 705-1715 (cellphone)       


Fax: (707) 668-4272      


Email: arobbins@bluelakerancheria-nsn.gov       


 


 


Financial Contact 


 


Name:         Trella Chun-Ming 


                    Humboldt State University 


Address:     1 Harpst Street, SBS 325 


                   Arcata, CA.  95521 


 


Telephone: 707-826-4033 


Fax:            707-826-5781 


Email:         spf-billing@humboldt.edu  


      


 


 


Financial Contact 


 


Name: Jessica Jones, Accounting Asst.       


        


Address:  PO Box 428, Blue Lake, CA 95525 


      


      


Telephone:  (707) 668-5101  x1035       


Fax:  (707) 668-4272       


Email:  AP@bluelakerancheria-nsn.gov       


 


 


Authorized Official 


 


Name:         Kacie Flynn, Executive Director 


                    HSU-Sponsored Programs Foundation 


Address:     1 Harpst Street, SBS 427 


                    Arcata, CA.  95521 


 


 


Telephone:  707-826-5159 


Fax:             707-826-4783 


Email:          Kacie.Flynn@humboldt.edu. 


      


            


 


Authorized Official 


 


Name: Jace Baldosser, Vice-President – Board of Education 


Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency       


       


Address: PO Box 428, Blue Lake, CA 95525       


       


       


       


Telephone: (707) 668-5101       


Fax: (707) 668-4272       


Email: tribaled@bluelakerancheria-nsn.gov       


 


  


DocuSign Envelope ID: DD84A451-AB4D-434A-8A80-4EB6846CFDCB







  


Humboldt State University Sponsored Programs Foundation 


Non-Federal Contract Agreement | v2016-A   Page 3  


 


ATTACHMENT 2 
 


Scope of Work 


 


 


Humboldt State University will provide 240 hours of educational support for students of Hoopa Elementary and/or Hoopa 


High School through any of the following methods: (a) small group STEM activities, (b) individual guidance, mentoring or 


tutoring based on students’ desire, need and efficacy levels, (c) classroom learning/activities/curriculum support, particularly 


the Air Quality Science Curriculum in Spring 2021 which will consist of eight (8) to ten (10) hours of curriculum work in 


the “classroom”, and two (2) maker activities each taking approximately two (2) hours. These activities will comply with the 


schools’ instructional implementation plans for the pandemic and may be in-person or in a virtual “classroom”.  


 


Humboldt State University will provide the following to Blue Lake Rancheria for documentation purposes: 


 Dated list of services/activities performed with the following information: 


o Grade level(s) of the activity 


o Total number of students served 


 Native students 


 Non-native students 


o Total number of hours of activity time with students 


 


Blue Lake Rancheria will provide training to Humboldt State University staff assigned to this project on the Air Quality 


Science Curriculum to be used in Spring 2021.  


DocuSign Envelope ID: DD84A451-AB4D-434A-8A80-4EB6846CFDCB







  


Humboldt State University Sponsored Programs Foundation 


Non-Federal Contract Agreement | v2016-A   Page 4  


ATTACHMENT 3 
 


Budget 


 


 


DocuSign Envelope ID: DD84A451-AB4D-434A-8A80-4EB6846CFDCB





				2020-08-27T14:45:55-0700

		Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com












Kindling the Flame


Princess Colegrove Maiya Rainer Skip Lowry


Stories Have Power: A Youth Cultural Revitalization Program


Participants will engage with State Park Interpreters who are members of the local 
Indigenous community, and will learn through songs, stories and activities that are culturally 
appropriate and place based. The goal of the program is to give every participant a better 
understanding of their own tribal heritage and the knowledge that their story is important 
and powerful. Sessions will be held at Sumeg Village in Patricks Point State Park!


6-8th grade, maximum of six boys and six girls


10:00am - 12:30pm


Every Saturday


First six-week session begins September 19th!  


Register now: bit.ly/KindlingtheFlame 
Masks Required


COVID-19 Safe



https://bluelakerancheria-nsn.gov/pathmakers/kindlingtheflame/






1 
 


Program Director 
Full Time 
Professional 
 


Blue Lake Rancheria Tribe of California 
 


POSITION DESCRIPTION 
MANAGEMENT RETAINS THE RIGHT TO CHANGE JOB DESCRIPTION AS DEEMED NECESSARY 


 
Job Title: STEP Development Grant Program Director 
Department: Tribal Government 
Reports To: Tribal Administrator 
FLSA Status: Exempt 
Prepared By:  
Revised Date: 10/01/2019 
Approved By:  
Approved:  


 
JOB SUMMARY 
Plans, develops and manages the Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency Development Project; 
performs complex administrative, budgetary, systems, statistical and other management analyses in 
support of activities and functions for the newly established Tribal Education Agency; makes 
recommendations for action and assists in policy and procedure development and implementation for 
the Education Code, and Joint Powers Agreement for the operation of the Regional Occupational Center 
and Program; supervises and directs the work of support staff; performs related work as assigned. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 


• Plans, develops, coordinates, conducts and implements or directs the implementation of program 
projects and/or activities; Oversees the day-to-day operations of the program and ensures that 
the program achieves its performance objectives within designated timelines and budgetary 
constraints. 


• Responsible for working with program partners to gather data, develop formative evaluations, 
and implement continuous improvements; Document and formalize the results of research, 
processes and deliverables. 


• Assesses program and project scope and needs, determining funding, staffing and other resource 
requirements.  


• Identifies obstacles, evaluates alternative courses of action and makes recommendations which 
may include such areas as organizational structure, staffing, facilities, equipment, cost analysis, 
fiscal reporting, productivity or policy or procedure modifications. 


• Serves in a consultative role as a technical expert on administrative, programmatic, financial and 
related issues and strategies; assists in developing goals, objectives and work standards for 
program and project implementation. 


• Develops and administers program and project budgets. 







2 
 


• Interprets and applies a variety of complex policies, rules and regulations; provides information 
to employees, other departments and outside organizations which may require tact and 
judgment. 


• Oversees program and project recordkeeping and reporting functions; prepares narrative and 
financial reports. 


• Confers with representatives of other governmental agencies, community groups, boards and 
commissions, vendors, the public and others; represents the department or others in meetings; 
may make presentations to public groups. 


 
Promotes the following within the department and among all Team Members: 


• Creates a collaborative, inclusive, and culturally responsive atmosphere  
• Encourages mutual respect, dignity and integrity with all Team Members, by setting positive 


examples at all times. 
• Maintains a professional departmental, company, and community reputation. 


 
Blue Lake Rancheria requires Team Members, on a continual basis… 


• To provide a safe work environment for Team Members, through compliance with established 
safety guidelines, identifying potential safety hazards, and reporting same to the appropriate 
person for proper resolution. 


• To maintain a professional departmental, company and community reputation. 
• To enforce performance standards, policies and procedures as they relate to the department. 
• To maintain a consistent, regular attendance record. 


 
SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES 


• Provides direction and supervision for subordinate supervisory, professional and/or support 
staff and provides for staff training and professional development. 


• Participates in the hiring of staff, recommending selection for appointing authority approval. 
• Conducts employee performance evaluations, counsels employees and recommends corrective 


or disciplinary actions as appropriate 
• Planning, supervising and reviewing the work of assigned subordinate supervisory, professional 


and support staff and training staff in work procedures. Interpreting, explaining and applying 
laws, regulations and polices related to program projects and activities. 


 
QUALIFICATIONS 
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. 
The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required. 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential 
functions. 
 
EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE 
Minimum requirement: Equivalent to graduation from a four-year college or university with major 
coursework in business or public administration or closely related field, and/or four years of professional 
level experience in administrative, management, operations, budgetary or similar analytical or 
management support work, which includes at least one year of staff supervision.  







3 
 


 
Preferred: Graduate level degree in business or public administration or closely related field, and ten years 
of professional level experience in administrative, management, operations, budgetary or similar 
analytical or management support work, which includes at least five years of staff supervision. 
 
At least one year of experience in a public agency setting is desirable. 
 
COMPUTER SKILLS 
Must be knowledgeable and proficient working with the Microsoft Office Suite, with intermediate to 
advanced skills using Microsoft Word, Excel, and PowerPoint. 
 
LANGUAGE SKILLS 
Ability to read, analyze, and interpret general business periodicals, professional journals, technical 
procedures, or government regulations. Ability to write reports, business correspondence, and procedure 
manuals. Ability to effectively present information and respond to questions from co-workers, partners, 
government agencies, and the general public. 


• Prepare clear and concise reports, correspondence and other written materials. 
• Strong public speaking skills 


 
MATHEMATICAL SKILLS 
Ability to add, subtract, multiply, and divide in all units of measure, using whole numbers, common 
fractions, and decimals. Ability to compute rate, ratio, and percent and to draw and interpret graphs. 
Strong skills associated with financial analysis. 
 
REASONING ABILITY 
Ability to solve complex and practical problems, dealing with a variety of concreate or unknown variables 
in situations where only limited standardization exists. Ability to interpret a variety of instructions 
furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form. 


• Use innovative techniques and both broad-based and detailed knowledge of grant and project 
management to formulate and implement concepts and processes that support short, medium, 
and long-term goals associated with Tribal government programs. 


• Strong analytical skills for evaluating the effectiveness of programs and services, making 
necessary changes and improvements. 


• Analyzing administrative, budgetary, operational, economic, political and organizational 
problems, evaluating alternatives and reaching sound conclusions. 


• Exercising sound independent judgment within established guidelines. 
 


CERTIFICATES, LICENSES, REGISTRATIONS 
Possession of a valid California driver’s license. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by a Team member 
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to 
enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 







4 
 


 
While performing the duties of this job, the Team Member is regularly required to sit; use hands to finger, 
handle, or feel; and talk or hear. The Team Member frequently is required to reach with hands and arms. 
The Team Member is occasionally required to stand; walk; climb or balance; and stoop, kneel, crouch, or 
crawl. The Team Member must occasionally lift and/or move up to 25 pounds. Specific vision abilities 
required by this job include close vision, and ability to adjust focus.  
 
WORK ENVIRONMENT 
The work environment characteristics describe here are representative of those a Team Member 
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be 
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the Team Member is frequently exposed to a general office 
environment including the use of standard office machinery. Job duties may extend outside the office to 
meetings locally and abroad. Travel required by funding agencies to attend management and program 
related trainings is expected. 
 
























Memorandum of Agreement - continued 


Signature Page 


Dr. JaSOflamos, President, 
Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Education Agency Board of Education 


Dr. Keith Flamer, President & Superintendent 
Redwoods Community College Dlstrict 


Education 


Roger Macdona , perintendent, Northern Humb ldt Union 
High School District 


Date 


07/29/2020 


Date 


MOA Expanding C-TIE 5 








Tribal Education Agency advocates for schools to add more Native American curriculum; 
provides teachers with lesson plan paired with Native novel locally authored 


 
We currently have a number of teachers that we are working with. This is one important step to 
get more Native American lesson plans, that are accurate and told from a Native perspective, in 


classrooms 
The culturally and historically accurate graphic novel is intended to reduce Eurocentrism and 


broaden the perspectives taught in the classroom to include local Native American history and 
viewpoints. 


 
To bring more culturally responsive curriculum into public schools that accurately represents 
the rich Native American population and culture on the North Coast, an education program 
called Pathmakers is working with Humboldt County public schools to add a novel to classroom 
curriculum that accurately depicts the WWI experience from the viewpoint of Native soldiers. 
Pathmakers, developed by the Blue Lake Rancheria Tribe, Humboldt County Office of Education, 
and Northern Humboldt Union High School District, funding to help build a culturally responsive 
curriculum that focuses on the book ‘Soldiers Unknown. The local author, Mr. Chag Lowry, will 
discuss the native viewpoints in the novel with classroom through virtual classrooms platforms. 


“A number of teachers have expressed interest in including the novel in their class curriculum 
this year, and having the opportunity to include the perspective of war from the Yurok people, 
culture and community,” Karen Skoglund, Indian Education Director for Northern Humboldt 
Union High School District, said. Skoglund believes this is one important step to get more Native 
American lesson plans, that are accurate and told from a native perspective, in classrooms. 


The culturally and historically accurate graphic novel is intended to reduce Eurocentrism and 
broaden the perspectives taught in the classroom to include local Native American history and 
viewpoints. “While the characters and details in the story are fictionalized, the context is not, 
and that decades of research went into this novel that centers around World War I,” Alison 
Robbins, Blue Lake Rancheria Tribe’s education director, said. Often, textbooks have 
inaccuracies when describing indigenous history - Pathmakers is advocating for more books in 
classrooms told from a native viewpoint to help correct the narrative. 
 
 The book will be paired with a virtual curriculum that covers Native American history, and the 
social affects Native soldiers experienced, going to a war for a country that committed genocide 
against its people a generation prior. Curriculum topics include how Native people responded 
to colonization, as well as the causes and consequences of WWI. Discussions will center around 
when North Coast tribes first had contact with European immigrants, and how it affected the 
Yurok people and their environment, and what it was like for Native Americans to be granted 
U.S. citizenship. 
 
The lesson plan will follow a maker activity that will focus on storytelling. Students will get to 
create their graphic novel storytelling from images that can be drawn, painted, or collaged 
together with photographs. Students will have the opportunity to discuss how to create a comic 







book story from local author, Mr. Chag Lowry. "I'll share how I worked with the artist to create 
our comic in the modules, and then students can ask me questions if their teachers would like 
to set up a Zoom call with me afterward," says Mr. Lowry.     
 
Soliders Unknown is a wartime narrative based on true life experiences of Yurok men in the 
military during WWI. The graphics encompass the Native American experience during war, with 
native culture and spirituality interwoven into the storyline and graphics.  Also, cultural items 
are incorporated into the graphics such as baskets, traditional foods such as acorns, and 
spiritual ways of living during the times of war.  
 
The novel is based on extensive military research and on oral interviews of family members of 
Yurok WWI veterans from throughout Humboldt and Del Norte counties. The author Chag 
Lowry is of Yurok, Maidu, and Achumawi ancestry, and the illustrator Rahsan Ekedal was raised 
in southern Humboldt.  Soldiers Unknown takes place during the battle of the Meuse-Argonne 
in France in 1918, which is the largest battle in American Army history. The book was peer-
reviewed and endorsed by the World War One Centennial Commission, for historical accuracy 
and compelling format in the telling of World War One history.   
 
“We are honored to work with our community partners who have a common goal to enrich 
schools with more culturally responsive education that accurately represents the many tribes in 
the region,” Jason Ramos, council member for the Blue Lake Rancheria Tribe, said. “We would 
like to see this novel become part of school’s curriculum planning every year, for social studies 
and history classes, to further educate students about Native American history and ways of life, 
which are important to this region.” 
 
Pathmakers is actively working with the Humboldt County Office of Education, providing 
culturally responsive lesson plans and curriculum that has a makerspace component. Due to 
COVID-19, all of the content will be taught virtually, with video demonstrations – kits and 
supplies will be made available to teachers. 
 
The Pathmakers project team is working with K-12 students, college students, parents, 
teachers, tribal members, and regional native cultural and education experts to develop the 
programming. Pathmakers activities will help all students, native and non-native, learn about 
the history, culture, and technologies of the tribes in the region, from pre-colonization to today. 
Pathmakers curriculum strives to bridge the gap between traditional Native technologies and 
maker activities using today’s technologies. Traditional Native technologies employed 
sophisticated techniques that are still in use today. 


 


 


 


 







 








This program is funded by a grant from the US
Department of Education, O�ce of Indian Education.


C-TIE


SOLDIERS UNKNOWN
A GRAPHIC NOVEL BY: CHAG LOWRY


CONTACT:
CHAG LOWRY
[T] (707) 496-2407 
[E] Ova4@sonic.net


The graphic novel Soldiers Unknown is a historically 
accurate World War One story told from the 
perspective of  Native Yurok soldiers.  The novel 
is based on extensive military research and on oral 
interviews of  family members of  Yurok WW1 
veterans from throughout Humboldt and Del 
Norte counties.  The author Chag Lowry is of  
Yurok, Maidu, and Achumawi ancestry, and the 
illustrator Rahsan Ekedal was raised in southern 
Humboldt.  Soldiers Unknown takes place during 
the battle of  the Meuse-Argonne in France in 
1918, which is the largest battle in American Army 
history.         


The book was peer-reviewed and endorsed by the 
World War One Centennial Commission, which is 
a group of  academics and retired U.S. military 
veterans who were appointed by President George 
W. Bush and President Barack Obama.  Soldiers 
Unknown gained this prestigious honor for 
historical accuracy and for its unique, compelling 
format in the telling of  World War One history. 


Pathmakers would like to encourage teachers to incorporate Soliders Unknown into their school 
curriculum. Free copies of  the books are available at McKinleyville High School and Arcata High 
School, and can be checked out at the campus libraries.


A curriculum guide has been created and can be accessed at the following links:


1. www.bluelakerancheria-nsn.gov/pathmakers/soldiers-unknown/


2. https://hcoe.org/pathmakers/


3. 


Students will also be able to participate in upcoming video workshops that will discuss the process 
of  storytelling through graphic novels. Chag Lowry is available for virtual classroom discussions 
and Q&A sessions. Please contact the author, Chag Lowry for more details. 
(707) 496-2407  | Ova4@sonic.net


https://storage.googleapis.com/wzukusers/user-34883651/documents/
5df7e6d0babb7D6Uyo4I/Curriculum%20Guide%20Soldiers%20Unknown.pdf








Two Feathers Proposed Services 2020 - 2021 
 


Proposed services:  


(1) Mentor services for students grades 6 – 12 during the 2020 – 2021 school year, assisting with the 
implementation of the below described youth program. 


CA State Parks & Coalition for Tribal Innovation & Entrepreneurship (C-TIE) have created a program 
entitled: Kindling the Flame: Stories Have Power – A Youth Cultural Revitalization Program. 


Due to Covid-19 group limitations each session may only serve 6 male and 6 female students at a time. 
The sessions are listed below: 


 


The in-person activities (Session 1, 2, 4, and 5) are held on each Saturday of the week, thus 9/14 – week 
1 the in person activity is held on Saturday, 9/19 at 10am. Each Saturday activity lasts 2.5 hours. Two male 
mentors and two female mentors are needed to help supervise and assist students with the activities 
which are being led by CA State Parks Interpreters.  The total hour pool for these activities is 240 (24 dates 
x 2.5 hrs. x 4 mentors). We propose compensation of $15 per hour for these 240 hours = $3,600 


We will also provide $10 per student, per date, for gas cards to cover costs for parents to bring students 
to Sumeg Village.  $10 x 12 students x 24 dates = $2,880 


The groups are led by: 


Skip Lowry – general supervision over the entire on-site program, and leader of the male cultural activities. 


Princess Colegrove and Maiya Rainer – leaders of the female cultural activities 


Students will sign up using: https://bluelakerancheria-nsn.gov/pathmakers/kindlingtheflame/ 


This enrollment form contains the Behavioral Standards & Assurances for the COVID-19 Reopening Plan, 
in accordance with Humboldt County Health Department. The form also contains a Consent to Treat form 
in case of emergencies. Information collected on the form will come to Alison Robbins, Blue Lake 
Rancheria’s Program Director, and the list of participants and pertinent information will be provided to 
Two Feathers & CA State Parks for use the coordination of services, and tracking program participation. 


All student supplies for activities are provided by CA State Parks & C-TIE. 


(2) Mentoring, tutoring, and curriculum training. 


Two Feathers will utilize funds to provide individual student mentoring & tutoring for Native American 
youth grades K – 12. We propose compensation of $15 per hour. 



https://bluelakerancheria-nsn.gov/pathmakers/kindlingtheflame/





Two Feathers Proposed Services 2020 - 2021 
 


Two Feathers will arrange appropriate training on program curriculum for mentors to be applied in 
services to Native youth. This proposed service can include the payment of contractors to provide training, 
supplies, stipends to attendees, and other costs associated with training. C-TIE has recommended “Native 
American Life Skills Development Curriculum” by Teresa Lafromboise for use in training. C-TIE agrees that 
another similar curriculum that Two Feathers leadership feels best services their core mission as well as 
C-TIE’s student development goals of self-efficacy, goal setting, persistence, and resilience is also 
acceptable.  


C-TIE will provide a catalog of curriculum from the Pathmakers program which can be accessed on-line by 
students and their mentors for use in tutoring and mentoring time. This is provided to enhance any 
offerings under the student’s individual mentoring plans created by Two Feathers. This curriculum 
includes live-stream opportunities with the Pathmakers Mobile Maker Technician, Program Contractor 
Chag Lowry, and the CA State Parks Interpreters, as well as pre-recorded videos. 


Compensation for these proposed services, C-TIE agrees costs not to exceed $8,520. 


(1) Mentor services & parent support costs for Kindling the Flame youth program = $6,480 
(2) Mentoring & tutoring support, and curriculum training = $8,520 


Total proposal not to exceed $15,000. 


Documentation: C-TIE must document the number of youth served, total number of hours of services to 
those youth, and the students’ grade levels. We must also differentiate between academic tutoring 
service vs. mentoring services. C-TIE requests that Two Feathers provides documentation that meets 
these needs. C-TIE does not need to have students’ names or personally identifiable information. 








California State Parks Partners with Blue Lake Rancheria Tribe to Initiate Cultural Mentorship 
Program for Native Youth  


 


“The goal of the program is to give every participant a better understanding of their own tribal 
heritage and the knowledge that their story is important and powerful.” 


An educational program that focuses on culturally responsive hands-on learning in Humboldt 
County, is preparing to roll out programming this fall that focuses on the indigenous viewpoints 
of the environment and land-use management in the region. Pathmakers, developed by the 
Blue Lake Rancheria Tribe, Humboldt County Office of Education, and Northern Humboldt 
Union High School District, has partnered with California State Parks to hold the culturally 
responsive educational activities in an outdoor setting. “Native youth will engage with state 
park interpreters who are members of the local indigenous community, and will learn through 
song, story and activities that are culturally appropriate and place-based,” Marnin Robbins, 
interpretive program manager for California State Parks, said. The programming called ‘Kindling 
the Flame’ will start in mid-September and take place during the 2020-2021 school year and 
follow a curriculum developed by Pathmakers, California State Parks, in conjunction with the KT 
Land Tenure Curriculum.  


The curriculum will be taught weekly by California State Park interpreters who will serve as 
educators and mentors, using a first-person perspective based on their own local Indigenous 
heritage. The event will take place primarily at Sumeg Village, a recreated Yurok redwood-plank 
village located in Patricks Point State Park.  The activities will focus on local Native American 
culture and knowledge, while incorporating maker components, so the learning experience is 
hands-on. For example, students will learn about Yurok craftsmanship, including the 
construction of Sumeg Village in 1990, and what materials were used to build Yurok houses. A 
makerspace activity will follow, where students will learn how to create and maintain 
components of the redwood plank home. “Kinesthetic or tactile learning is all about the hands-
on process of making things and doing physical activities that teach the lesson to be learned, 
Alison Robbins, Pathmakers Program Director, said. “It’s how people have learned for millennia. 
It’s practical, and it leads to greater engagement while reinforcing efficacy in the new skills 
acquired.”  


Other planned activities will bring more attention to the deep-rooted indigenous culture in the 
North Coast region, while exploring area tribes’ connection to the land. The first six-weeks will 
focus on native voice and storytelling at Sumeg Village during such activities as a fire building 
workshop. Stories will be told over fires started by cultural interpreters, but the fires will be 
maintained by the students. Stories will involve place, songs, legends, and experiences. “Stories 
are intergenerational.  Stories transcend time. Stories have power. Everything has its own story. 
Yurok culture demands that we honor own stories as well as listening to and respecting the 
stories of others”, says Skip Lowry, State Park Interpreter. Pathmakers Native Youth will get the 



Robbins, Marnin@Parks

The Land Tenure Curriculum is providing some ideas and projects, however the primary source of the curriculum is being developed directly by State Park interpreters Skip Lowry, Princess Colegrove and Maiya Rainer. 







chance to journal and tell stories of their own, while also listening to traditional native stories 
about culture and tradition. Tribal elders will attend as regular presenters. 


In addition to in-person makerspace educational activities, state parks will produce indigenous-
focused educational videos of modified STEM activities developed by Pathmakers, focusing on 
the same curriculum. These videos will be posted online, and will be made available for teachers 
within Humboldt County Schools and throughout the state, to use in their virtual lesson plans. 
This will help reach more students during COVID-19, while teachers and students adjust to 
distance learning.  


As for the in-person instruction, the activities will take place in small group settings of 
approximately six students. Students, mentors, and staff will wear masks and physically distance 
during the outdoor activities. 


 “Cultural activities help Native American students learn about their cultural heritage, and feel a 
sense of pride,” Jason Ramos, President of Blue Lake Rancheria’s Tribal Education Agency’s 
Board of Education and Tribal Councilmember, said. “When students feel involved in school, 
they are more likely to succeed and graduate. We are honored to work with our community 
partners, and help bring more culturally responsive curriculum in the region.”  


In a makerspace, students use ideas from science, technology, engineering, arts, and math 
(STEAM) to solve design challenges using a variety of tools and materials. Challenges can be 
theoretical or based on real world needs. Since 2019, the Pathmakers project team has been 
working with K-12 students, college students, parents, teachers, tribal members, and regional 
native cultural and education experts to develop its programming and curriculum. Traditional 
Native technologies employed sophisticated techniques and the Pathmakers curriculum strives 
to cohesively blend traditional ecological knowledge and today’s applied sciences and 
technologies using maker activities.  


 


 


 





